ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
April 1, 2014
9:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Bert Stednman
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 30

"An Act relating to new defined benefit tiers in the public
enpl oyees’ retirement system and the teachers’ retirement
system providing certain enployees an opportunity to choose
between the defined benefit and defined contribution plans of
the public enployees' retirement system and the teachers’
retirenment system and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 30

SHORT TI TLE: TEACHERS & PUB EMPLOYEE RETI REMENT PLANS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) EGAN

01/ 22/ 13 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 22/ 13 (S) STA, FIN

03/ 27/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 27/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 27/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 01/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

LI Z LUCAS, Executive Director

Al aska Retired Educators Associ ati on (AKREA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in strong support of SB 30.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- April 1, 2014



ANDY HOLLEMAN, President

Anchor age Educati on Associ ation (AEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 30.

KATHY LEA, Chief Pension Oficer

D vision of Retirement Benefits

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the discussion of
SB 30.

FATE PUTMAN, Lobbyi st

Al aska St ate Enpl oyees Associ ati on ( ASEA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supporting information for SB 30.

JESSE Kl EHL, Staff

Senat or Egan

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered information and answered questions
related to SB 30 on behalf of the sponsor.

W LLI AM FORNI A, Consul t ant

Al aska Public Pension Coalition

Washi ngton, DC

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 30.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9: 05: 30 AM

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:05 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Welechowski, Gessel, and Chair

Dyson.
SB 30- TEACHERS & PUB EMPLOYEE RETI REMENT PLANS

9:05: 57 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced the consideration of SB 30. He noted this
was t he second heari ng.

9:07: 06 AM
LI Z LUCAS, Executive Director, Al aska Retired Educat or s
Associ ation (AKREA), stated strong support for SB 30. She said

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 1, 2014



that AKREA nenbers are conmmitted to inproving the quality of
life for Alaska's educators. She recapped the previous hearing
and stated that tinme is of the essence and she would
respectfully suggest the conmmttee agree to support SB 30.

9:09: 59 AM

ANDY HOLLEMAN, President, Anchorage Education Association (AEA),
Anchorage, Al aska, stated support for SB 30. He rem nded the
commttee that the defined benefit system started as a way to
bring significant value to enployees over a long period at a
reasonable cost to the enployer. He said the AEA wants to
attract top quality educators who want to make a life in Al aska
and the enploynment conditions ought to reflect that. Retirenent
isn't that inportant to educators first entering the system but
as they start looking nore long termthey realize that nmaking a
career in Alaska cones up short. He noted that M. Fornia, who
testified during the previous hearing, pointed out that Al aska
uniquely stands out as a mjor enployer that neither allows
participation in Social Security nor offers a defined benefit
retirement plan. Wen defined contribution enployees realize
this shortcom ng, they often opt to nove to a state where they
don't have to face such an uncertain retirement. This is a huge
negative for retaining good teachers in Al aska, he said.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked for clarification of his statenent that
Al aska doesn't allow teachers to participate in Social Security
because it was her understanding that it was the federal
governnment that nmade that decision in the 1930s.

MR. HOLLEMAN replied he wasn't sure of the history but his
understanding is that it was a decision made in the 1960s
relative to the state providing its own retirenent system

9:15: 33 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL recapped M. Barnhill's explanation of the
hi story of Social Security during the previous hearing.

CHAIR DYSON asked M. Holleman if he heard the discouraging
statistics about enployee turnover in the Tier IV system

MR. HOLLEMAN replied he is famliar with the statistics.
CHAI R DYSON asked if his understanding is that current Tier |V

retirement benefits are portable, but that portability is gone
under the structure of SB 30.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 1, 2014



MR. HOLLEMAN replied it's not that there's no portability, but
the decision to nove is nore difficult after a nunber of years
in the system

CHAIR DYSON said he doesn't agree with structuring a benefit
system that has a tendency to force people to stay here agai nst
their wll.

9:22:26 AM
KATHY LEA, Chief Pension Oficer, Division of Retirenent
Benefits, Departnment of  Adm nistration, addressed Senator

Ceisel's question about Social Security. She explained that the
Territory of Alaska started providing a teacher's retirenent
system in 1947 and in 1955 the State of Alaska had an
opportunity to join Social Security. The state could opt in all
enpl oyees who were not covered by a retirement system and those
who were already covered by a retirenent system Since the
teachers retirement system was already in place, the Territory
of Alaska opted to cover only those enployees who didn't have
another retirement system The Public Enployees Retirenent
System (PERS) canme into being in 1960 and the Territory
enpl oyees and later the State of Alaska enployees did
participate in Social Security until February 1980. The
enpl oyees held a referendum in 1979 when there was an
opportunity to go with a Social Security replacenent plan. The
State  of Al aska enpl oyees and 16 ot her parti ci pating
muni ci palities have been in the Al aska Suppl enental Annuity Pl an
since February 1980.

CHAI R DYSON asked her to repeat what she said about teachers.

M5. LEA said that Alaska teachers were provided wth a
retirement system starting in 1947 so they didn't vote to opt in
or out of Social Security. The Territory of Alaska made that
decision in their Social Security agreenent in 1955. She offered
to provide a copy of that agreenent.

CHAIR DYSON asked if the state was constrained in any way by
federal |aw

M5. LEA answered that the federal governnment gave the state a
choice of including all enployees who were not otherw se covered
by a retirenent system in Social Security. The state could also
i nclude those who were covered by a retirement system (teachers)
but the Territory chose not to do that.

9:25:18 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 1, 2014



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there is vesting under the current
systemfor Tier IV PERS and Tier IIl TRS enpl oyees.

MS. LEA explained that under both PERS Tier IV and TRS Tier I
there's a staggered vesting system After two years the enpl oyee
is 25 percent vested, after three years 50 percent vested, after
four years 75 percent vested, and after five years of service
the enployee is fully invested in the enployer contributions.
The teachers vesting schedul e works the sane way.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI summarized her answer and Ms. Lea agreed
with the characterization

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if enpl oyees under the PERS Tier 11
and TRS Tier Il systens are able to cash out their contributions
if they leave prior to five years of service.

M5. LEA answered yes. Under the defined benefit system the
enpl oyee can cash out their contributions plus interest at
term nation regardl ess of vesti ng, but t he enpl oyer
contributions revert to the enployer prior to vesting. She added
that the contributions earn four percent interest that 1is
conmpounded semi annual | y.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the data shows that |arge nunbers
of enployees under PERS Tier IV and TRS Tier |1l are |eaving
their jobs after they vest.

MS5. LEA replied the division just conpleted a query for Senator
G esel's office on the retention schedule conparing the defined
benefit retention against the defined contribution retention.
She offered to provide the nenbers with the information.

CHAIR DYSON expressed irritation with a system that allows
people to choose a rural assignnent for three years in an area
that has a significant cost of living differential primarily for
the purpose of boosting their average high salary years. He
asked her perception.

9: 30: 04 AM

M5. LEA replied that phenonena is seen in both in the defined
benefit and defined contribution plan systens. In the defined
benefit system for PERS only, there is a restriction of wusing
any geographic differential in calculating a retirenent. It has
to be half the enployees service served in an area wth a
differential before it can be used. In the teachers retirenent
there is no restriction on any type of differential because

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 1, 2014



that's sinply the pay for that area. In the defined benefit
plan, if a teacher serves three years in an area with a high
salary, their retirement will be calculated on the average of
those three years. In the defined contribution plan, it is
attractive to work in an area with a higher salary because it
means higher contributions into the enployee's account. Since
the defined contribution benefit is based on the contribution
bal ance, it is attractive to work in Bush areas. The division
sees those large salaries working to attract both defined
benefit and defined contribution enpl oyees, she said.

CHAI R DYSON commented that Tier |1V enployees have that advantage
as well as the advantage of nore conplete portability.

MS. LEA agreed; once the enployee has two years of service they
can start accessing the enployer contributions and once they
have five years of service they're 100 percent vested in the
enpl oyer contributions and they can withdraw it all.

9:32:39 AM

CHAI R DYSON of fered his understanding that alnost all retirenent
systens are designed and operate on the assunption that the
account will earn enough to pay the demand for the retirees. He
observed that part of the State of Alaska's problemis that the
investnments didn't grow and pay the dividends according to the
assunptions. He asked if SB 30 assunmes an eight percent return
on investments.

MS. LEA answered yes.
CHAIR DYSON noted that M. Kiehl nodded in agreenent. He said
that's a concern because the recent history doesn't reflect

those returns. He asked if she could calculate the returns at
four percent, six percent, and eight percent.

M5. LEA related that the division has a spreadsheet that's able
to run those cal cul ati ons.

CHAIR DYSON asked how 1long it would take to run the
cal cul ati ons.

M5. LEA estimated it would take three days. She asked if he
wanted just balances or balances and the eight options for
di sbursenent, one of which is a lifetinme annuity.

CHAI R DYSON solicited input fromthe commttee.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 1, 2014



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he'd be curious to know the historica
average of the S& 500 Index since 1926. He said he believes
it's 9.77 percent, but he'd be interested to know if she cones
back with a different nunber. He also expressed interest in
know ng what nunber the admnistration uses in calculating the
returns and what nunber the Al aska Retirenent Managenent Board
(ARM) Board uses.

M5. LEA agreed to provide the information.

CHAI R DYSON asked M. Putman for help checking the veracity of
the informati on the commttee receives.

9:37:16 AM

FATE PUTMNAN, Lobbyist, Alaska State Enployees Association
(ASEA), said that WIlliam Fornia, the consultant who testified
at the previous hearing, will hopefully be able to provide the
i nformati on.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there is a better way of asking Ms. Lea for
cal cul ati ons.

MR. PUTMAN responded that the question of the long-term
projection for gromh for investnents is correct. He agreed with
Senator Wel echowski that historically it's been 9.7 percent. SB
30 estimates an 8 percent return in anticipation that growh
wi |l exceed expectations.

SENATOR COGHILL recalled the market corrections since the 1970s
and suggested |ooking at trend lines on both disbursenent and
i ncone.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted that Ms. Lea's question pertained to the
various disbursenents and she believes that the detail 1is
val uabl e i nformati on.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  suggested it would be helpful if the
returns were broken down in five year increments over the | ast
25 years, because his research indicates that an 8 percent
return i s reasonabl e over tine.

SENATOR COGHI LL added that seeing both trend lines wll show
i ncome and outgo and where the |ines cross.

9:42:26 AM
MR. PUTTMAN noted that healthcare cost is the conmponent that
drives the retirenent system and that the bill is designed to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 1, 2014



shift to the enployee the healthcare costs that aren't covered
by investnent grow h.

SENATOR COGHILL said it would be interesting to know the |ega
ram fications of shifting those costs to the retired enpl oyee.

CHAI R DYSON asked his staff to send the question to Legislative
Research. His understanding is that all retirenent benefits are
contract law and there is no basis on which the enployer can
avoi d that.

SENATOR d ESSEL suggested it would be interesting to hear from
Legi sl ative Finance Director David Teal on the subject.

CHAI R DYSON asked, assuming the bill passes, if contributions
fromthe enployer would go into a separate account.

M5. LEA answered yes they would go into a new account and
enpl oyee and enpl oyer contributions would not be m xed.

CHAI R DYSON asked if contributions for the new defined benefit
plan would go into a different account than the current defined
benefit account.

9:45: 45 AM
M5. LEA answered no; those contributions would go into the
Defined Benefit Trust.

CHAIR DYSON reiterated that he wanted to see a spreadsheet and
graph that shows the enployer and enployee contributions for
this new group of defined benefit enployees and the cost of
those people retiring and getting benefits, discrete from the
exi sting account of all the defined benefit enpl oyees.

M5. LEA agreed and noted that the funds within the PERS Trust
are accounted for by Tier.

CHAIR DYSON asked for a graph that shows the growh of the
account, the anticipated growh of the account, and the
antici pated grom h of demand on the account.

9:47.: 00 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked the anpunt of the unfunded liability
that is caused by the defined benefit and the anount that is
caused by heal thcare costs.

M5. LEA offered to follow up with updated figures.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 1, 2014



SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked for her general sense.

MS. LEA replied she believes it's generally the healthcare costs
t hat account for the rise in the unfunded liability.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if her sense is that the vast
majority is healthcare.

M5. LEA answered no.
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked her to follow up with the nunbers.
M5. LEA agreed.

CHAI R DYSON asked M. Kiehl if he had any comrents to add to the
di scussi on.

9:48: 34 AM

JESSE  KI EHL, Staff, Senat or Dennis  Egan, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, addressed several questions that
arose during the foregoing discussion. He explained that the
stability of the pension benefit can be addressed and enhanced
t hrough plan design. For exanple, the average five high years of
salary for public enployees Tier Il was designed as a provision
to reduce or elimnate late career noves to spike the pension
anount. Sone plans go further and use |lifetinme average earnings.

CHAI R DYSON asked if pension benefits are bargained in union
contracts.

VR. Kl EHL expl ai ned t hat t hi ngs like t he geogr aphi c
differentials are bargained by unions, but the pension benefit
is not. He understands that the Al aska Public Enployee Relation
Act is explicit about that.

MR. KIEHL supplenented the discussion of the history of Al aska
teachers and Social Security. He relayed that Alaska is 1 of 14
states that does not include teachers in Social Security,
whereas 36 other states elected to include teachers in their
Soci al Security agreenents with the federal governnent.

Wth regard to the discussion about portability, he said he
appreciates Ms. Lea's context that enployees who decide to |eave
the defined benefit system whether before or after they vest,
are entitled to take all their contributions plus a four percent
guaranteed rate of return. He added that another elenent of plan

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 1, 2014



design is that the defined benefit pensions in SB 30, Ilike
Al aska's |egacy systens, have a 10 percent <cost of living
adjustnment for those retirees who I|ive in Alaska. It s
deliberately designed to keep retirees living in the state and
it's worked. In FY2011, 90 percent of the $921 mllion in PERS
and TRS pension checks went to Alaska residents and into the
Al aska econony. According to the National Institute for
Retirement Research, the total economc inpact to Al aska is nore
than $1.4 billion.

CHAIR DYSON asked M. Fornia to respond to the questions he
heard during the foregoing di scussion.

9:53: 05 AM

W LLI AM FORNI A, Consultant, Pension Trustee Advisors, said he is
working for the Al aska Public Pension Coalition. Addressing the
guestion about the consequence of long termreturns of only 4-6
percent, he warned that it would be problematic for all tiers,
not just the defined benefit tier structured under SB 30.

Wth regard to the question about contract |aw and whether
benefits can be reduced, he said it depends on how the contract
is witten. If the benefit is described up front as able to be
reduced, there is no contract problem The State of Wsconsin
does that with its cost of living adjustnment and other states
have sim | ar benefit provisions.

CHAIR DYSON asked about the nenbership of the Alaska Public
Pensi on Coalition.

MR FORNIA replied it is a collection of unions. He deferred to
M. Kiehl and M. Putman for the actual |ist.

CHAI R DYSON asked if he is an independent contractor.

MR. FORNI A answered yes, and he tries hard to work both sides of
t he issue.

9:57:21 AM

CHAI R DYSON asked if he heard correctly that the risk to the
state would be less under SB 30 than under the current Tier |V
system

MR FORNIA clarified that under the current proposal the risk
would be nore secondary if returns were poor. Individuals
woul dn't be able to retire and those that had retired woul d have
| oner benefits, which mght cause public assistance problens.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 1, 2014



The fact is that the traditional defined benefit plans generally
place nore risk on enployers than enployees, he said. The
| argest risk under a low investnent return scenario is to the
exi sting defined benefit Tiers I, Il, and IIl because of the
| arge unfunded liability.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he could talk about how nuch of
the unfunded liability is conprised of healthcare and if the
greatest risk lies with healthcare or defined benefit pensions.

MR. FORNIA posited that a substantial anount of the unfunded
liability is due to increased healthcare costs as opposed to | ow
investnment return. SB 30 is designed to fix that problem by
shifting the costs to enpl oyees.

CHAI R DYSON asked if he sees a trend, because he understands
that many sovereigns and nmnunicipalities are considering a
defined contribution system going forward.

MR FORNIA replied there are concerns and considerations of
hybrid systens, but there haven't been any new defined
contribution plans. Even Detroit's proposed plan of adjustnent
under their bankruptcy is going to be a defined benefit plan,
al beit | esser. He cited ot her exanples.

SENATOR G ESSEL stated that she intended to ask the Departnent
of Admnistration to break out the healthcare conponent of the
unfunded liability. The FY2011l data the conmttee received | ast
year is outdated.

CHAIR DYSON asked his staff to conpile the requests and
guestions from each commttee nenber. He restated his desire to
see the information in graph form

10: 05: 07 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL asked for the anticipated pool of enployees, the
different benefit options in order to extrapolate the benefit to
the state and enployee of pooling the noney, and the expected
heal t hcare ri sk under the options.

MR. KIEHL said he would argue that the risk of rising healthcare
costs falls alnpbst entirely to the enployee pool. Another
benefit to the state from pooling investnments is that an open
trust fund into which new noney is put to cover future benefits
can maintain an alnost permanent tine horizon and thus a higher
rate of return as opposed to a closed trust fund that nust
gradually take less risk in its investnents as the need for cash

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- April 1, 2014



becones nore inmediate. Wth an open trust fund and new benefits
being accrued and paid for, the state can continue to gain a
tremendous portion of the econom c benefit of pensions from the
gl obal econony instead of Al askans.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if the new noney comng into the trust
fund could only be paid out only to the new tier, and never go
to the unfunded liability.

MR. KIEHL explained that the bill puts the contributions from
the new defined benefit enployees and the enployer into the sane
trust. If they were split into a separate trust fund, the |egacy
defined benefit trusts would have the same issue with their time
horizon. To get the benefit of that open trust fund and the near
permanent tine horizon, both assets and liabilities would need
to be pool ed, although they could be accounted for separately.

10: 09: 19 AM
CHAI R DYSON asked if the new tier would be a draw on the |egacy
trust funds if it doesn't work as anti ci pat ed.

MR. KIEHL explained that if they're invested together, they
woul d nove in tandem |f they were invested separately, the sane
mar ket forces and changes that mght occur in the world would
affect both.

CHAI R DYSON asked how a disproportionate draw in one tier would
af fect people in the other tiers.

MR. KIEHL replied his initial response is that any given tier of
hires is conprised of a variety of people of a variety of ages,
but he'd give nore thought to a worst case scenario.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if it would alleviate sone of the
unfunded liability problem by opening things up so that all
public enpl oyees are contributing to the system

10: 12: 08 AM

MR, KIEHL answered that he believes it does, particularly in the
out years, because an open system has a l|longer tine horizon and
can potentially gain greater returns.

SENATOR COGHILL offered his understanding of the risk if returns
are | ess than eight percent.

CHAI R DYSON held SB 30 in commttee.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- April 1, 2014



10: 13: 16 AM

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee hearing at 10:13 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- April 1, 2014



